
  

 
 

Milwaukee County Parks - Staff Memorandum 
The Dock, Container Bar @ Bradford Beach House 
January 15, 2021 

 
The following review comments have been provided on plans received by Milwaukee County Parks 
(dated 6/2020) from The Dock for a proposed container bar at the Bradford Beach House. These 
comments reflect review by Parks Planning, Parks Operations, Parks Trades, Milwaukee County 
Office of Persons with Disabilities, and Milwaukee County Architecture & Engineering Divisions. 
These review comments are considered interim while the City of Milwaukee has review through 
the Department of Neighborhood Services pending. Milwaukee County Parks will finalize review 
during issuance of a right-of-entry permit for construction, which will refer to and include any 
City/State permits. 
 
 
1. Utilities – 

a. Coordination with Parks Trades and Operations on utilities is necessary to establish that 
County standards are planned, as well as details on where connections, penetrations, 
and metering are planned. The outcome of this meeting should be documented and 
reflected in updated plans and permits. As of 1/15/21 this meeting was being planned. 

b. Plumbing permit does not yet name a contractor.  
c. The 6/2020 electrical permit lists only 100-amp sub-feeder change and should be 

revised to reflect the entire project scope. 
d. The 6/2020 plumbing permit only refers to 6 fixtures and should be revised to reflect 

the entire project scope.  
e. Will any telecom connections be necessary for the planned operation? 
f. Will food be heated? Will gas be necessary? Exhaust? Make-up air? 
g. Existing grease trap may not have capacity for what is routed, evaluation necessary. 

 
2. Signage –  

a. Signage may only be lit during Park hours.  
b. Signs shall not be internally lit but should be lit by exterior lighting. 
c. Electrical connections for signage are unclear. 
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3. Structural –  
a. Surface patching was completed in 2020. Patching product information shall be 

provided to Milwaukee County for project records. 
b. The slab should be x-rayed to avoid hitting reinforcing during const. 
c. Structural memos (Jan ’20 and June ’20) –  

i. Anything that is a part of the final design load, including related wind, snow, and 
dead loads, should be accounted for in a revised structural memo.  

ii. The consulting structural engineer must inspect the bottom of the subject slab. 
iii. A site visit must be made to verify the capacity of the slab. 
iv. Structural calcs are assumed to be reviewed as a part of the City permit and 

should be provided to Mke Cnty with that permit package. 
 
4. Arch/Site Comments –  6/8/20 Set 

a. How is the proposed string lighting supported? 
b. How is the need for horizontality referenced in the City of Milwaukee COA staff report 

(attached) being addressed? 
c. Please provide documentation of State plan review, or equivalent, conducted by the City 

of Milwaukee.  
d. Site concrete condition west of the building should be documented before and after the 

delivery of the container and construction of the project. Any damaged pavement shall 
be repaired or replaced. This can be managed through a future Right-of-Entry permit 
with Parks. 

e. Detour plans should be developed for the Oak Leaf Trail during construction. Any 
closure of Lincoln Memorial Drive needs a separate review and approval. This can be 
managed through a future Right-of-Entry permit with Parks. 

 
5. ADA review  

a. Provide record of the City of Milwaukee Dept of Neighborhood Services ADA review 
referenced in the City of Milwaukee COA staff report. 

b. Given the accessibility upgrades at the beach in 2020, Parks Planning supports full ADA 
accessibility to the container bar. Creation of an equivalent experience from an 
accessible route, or consideration of a ramp to the bar level, either from the beach or to 
the bridge that connects from the west should be evaluated. 
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c. Milwaukee County’s Office of Persons with Disabilities has agreed that an analysis must 
be performed regarding ADA and that access to this new venue would be paramount. As 
indicated in the Disproportionality Worksheet, "accessibility improvements outside the 
intended project scope are often required." 

 
6. Lakebed Development – Food Service - Public Trust Doctrine 

a. WIDNR is currently reviewing the proposal for compliance with the regulations 
applicable to lakebed lands in the Public Trust Doctrine. 










